

Builders' Association of India (All India Association of Engineering Construction Contractors and Builders) G-1/G-20, 7th Floor, Commerce Centre, J. Dadajee Road, Tardeo, Mumbai 400034 (91-22) 23520507, 23514802, 23521328

🐱 baihq.mumbai@gmail.com 🏾 🞔 @BAINational 🗈 Builders Association of India

Ref: 597/O/2022-23 dated 10th October, 2022

# MINUTES OF THE 81<sup>ST</sup> ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF BUILDERS' ASSOCIATION OF INDIA HELD ON SATURDAY, 24<sup>TH</sup> SEPTEMBER 2022 AT 6.00 P.M. AT UDAY SAMUDRA HOTEL, KOVALAM, KERALA.

The list of members present is attached herewith and marked as Annexure 'A'.

Shri Niimesh Paatel President, was in the Chair, and called the meeting to order.

Before start of the meeting the Hon. Gen. Secretary, Shri Gyan Chand Madhani informed about the sad demise of Shri Kishan Goradia left for his heavenly abode on 6th April, 2021. Shri Kishan Goradia was Chairman of M/s Dosti Realty Ltd., Patron Members of BAI from Mumbai Centre and father of Shri Deepak Goradia, President, CREDAIMCHI., Shri Sandeep Goyal left for his heavenly abode on 15th April, 2021.Shri Sandeep Goyal was a member of BAI from Jagdalpur Centre, Shri K.Sridhar, Past State Chairman, Karnataka State, BAI, expired on 25th April 2021, Shri Joshy Joseph left for his heavenly abode on 25th April, 2021. Shri Joshy Joseph was Past Chairman, BAI Nashik Centre, Dr. Manubhai Patel, M/s Michigan Engineers Pvt. Ltd. left for his heavenly abode on 1st May, 2021. He was the patron member of Mumbai Centre., Dr. Brahm Datt left for his heavenly abode on 3rd May, 2021. Dr. Brahm Datt was Director of M/s Som Datt Builders Pvt. Ltd., New Delhi and President of BAI during 2003-05, Shri Suresh Babu left for his heavenly abode on 8<sup>th</sup> August, 2020. Shri Suresh Babu was Managing Director, M/s V. Rajagopal & Co. and son of Shri V. Rajagopal, Trustee, BAI, Shri K. G. Rajagopal Reddy left for his heavenly abode on 24<sup>th</sup> April, 2021. Shri K. G. Rajagopal Reddy was Patron Member of BAI from Karnataka (Bangalore) Centre, Shri T. S. Sashi Kumar left for his heavenly abode on 13<sup>th</sup> May, 2021. Shri T. S. Sashi Kumar was Patron Member of BAI from Mysore Centre, Shri Saurabh Mittal left for his heavenly abode on 15<sup>th</sup> May, 2021. Shri Saurabh Mittal was Director of M/s SKB Builders India Ltd., Patron Members of BAI from Delhi Centre, Smt. Vasumati left for her heavenly abode on 15<sup>th</sup> May, 2021. Smt. Vasumati was mother of Shri Vallabhaneni Venkateswara Rao, Vice-President, BAI, Shri K. Venkat Reddy left for his heavenly abode o 15<sup>th</sup> May, 2021. Shri K. Venkat Reddy was proprietor of M.s. Kayvee Enterprises, Patron Members of BAI from Hyderabad Centre and father of Shri K. Chandra Shaker Reddy, BAI Hyderabad Centre, Shri Samatham Rambabu left for his heavenly abode on 16<sup>th</sup>

Delhi Office : D1/203, Aashirwad Complex, Green Park Main, New Delhi - 110 016 🕐 : (011) 26568763 / 9555448763 • Email : baidelhi16@gmail.com

**BAI Centres at :** 

Adlabad, Agra, Agra Cantt., Ahmedabad, Ahmednagar, Aligarh, Allahabad, Alleppy, Aluva, Amravati, Amaravathi, Andaman & Nicobar, Angamali, Aurangabad, Avadi, Baghpat, Bangalore, Baramati, Bareilly, Baroda, Bharuch, Bhopal, Bhubaneswar, Bilaspur, Butbori, Calicut, Chandigarh, Changanacherry, Chengai, Chennai, Chettinadu, Chikkmagalur, Chitradurga, Coimbatore, Delhi, Delhi East Shahadra, Delhi North, Delhi South, Delhi West, Dhanbad, Dharapuram, Dhule, Dehradun, Dindigul, Durgapur, Durg-Bhillai, Erode, Ettumanoor, Faridabad, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Gandhinagar, Ghaziabad, Goa, Greater Hyderabad, Greater Jaipur, Greater Noida, Guntur, Gurgaon, Guwahati, Haldia, Hapur, Hasan, Hyderabad, Ichalkaranji, Idukki, Indore, Jabalpur, Jagdalpur, Jaigaon, Jaisalmer, Jamshedpur, Jodhpur, Kalpakkam, Kallakurichi, Kamareddy, Kanchipuram, Kanker, Kannur, Kanpur, South, Kanyakumari, Karaikal, Karimnagar, Kamai, Karnavati, Khammam, Kochi, Kodaikanal, Kodungullar, Kolhapur, Kolkata, Kollam, Kotlayam, Kumbakonam, Kundii, Latur, Loni, Lucknow, Madhuranthakam, Madurai, Mahaboobnagar, Malegaon, Mangalore, Mandya, Mayiladuthurai, Medachal, Medak, Meerut, Meerut Cantt., Modinagar, Moradabad, Noradabad Nor. Rly, Mumbai, Muvattupuzha, Muzaffamagar, Mysore, Nagapattnam, Nagur, Nalgonda, Namakkal, Nanded, Nandurbar, Nasik, Neliore, Neyveli, Nigiri, Nizamabad, Ongole, Palani, Parbani, Partha, Perambalur, Phaltan, Pink City Jaipur, Pondicherry, Ponneri, Poonamallee, Por-Ramangamdi, Pudukkottai, Pune, Raichur, Raigad, Raipur, Theni, Thiruvananthapuram, Ranchi, Ranga Reddy, Ravulapalem, Salem, Sangamer, Sangli, Satara, Shahda, Shimoga, Sitchar, Sitapur, Sitapur, Sitapur, Sitapur, Sitapur, Thiruvananthapuram, Tuticorin, Udumalpet, Ulhasnagar, Velore, Vijayawada, Vikarabad, Vilupuram, Visakhapatnam, Vizag Steel City, Wai, Warangal, Western U.P. Electrical, Yadadri.

May, 2021. Shri Samatham Rambabu was General Council Member of BAI from Tanuku Centre, Shri Diliprao Wagh left for his heavenly abode on 17<sup>th</sup> May, 2021. Shri Diliprao Wagh was fatherin-law of Shri Ranjeet More, Past Vice-President, BAI. Shri Diliprao Wagh was the patriarch of the illustrious K. K. Wagh family of Nashik and a successful civil contractor, Smt. Lyla left for her heavenly abode on 17th May, 2021. Smt. Lyla was sister of Shri Najeeb Mannel, State Chairman, BAI Kerala, Shri Dinesh Hiranand Bhatia left for his heavenly abode on 17<sup>th</sup> May, 2021. Shri Dinesh Hiranand Bhatia was a Patron Member of BAI from Ulhasnagar Centre, Shri Shaligram Agarwal left for his heavenly abode on 18th May, 2021. Shri Shaligram Agarwal was father of Shri Sanjeev Agarwal, Chairman, BAI Durgapur Centre, Smt. Renuka Agarwal left for her heavenly abode on 26<sup>th</sup> May, 2021. Smt. Renuka Agarwal was mother of Shri Sanjeev Agarwal, Chairman, BAI Durgapur Centre, Smt. Vahuladevi left for her heavenly abode on 27th May, 2021. Smt. Vahuladevi was wife of Late Shri Sriramulu V., brother of Shri V. Rajagopal, Trustee, BAI, Shri Nitin Rajmal Shah left for his heavenly abode on 30th May, 2021. Shri Nitin Rajmal Shah was Director of M/s RPS Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd., Patron Members of BAI from Mumbai Centre and elder brother of Shri Ketan Shah, Executive Committee Member of BAI Mumbai Centre, Shri R. Srinivasan left for his heavenly abode on 8<sup>th</sup> June 2021. Shri R. Srinivasan was incumbent Chairman of BAI Kumbakonam Centre, Shri A. Kumar left for his heavenly abode on 10<sup>th</sup> June, 2021. Shri A. Kumar was Past Chairman, BAI Tiruppur Centre., Smt. Sushi Gopal Harisinghani left for her heavenly abode on 30th July, 2021. Smt. Sushi Gopal Harisinghani was wife of Shri Gopal Harisinghani, Past Chairman, BAI Mumbai Centre and mother of Shri Ravi Harisinghani, Executive Committee Member, BAI Mumbai Centre, Shri Jagdishprasad Gupta left for his heavenly abode on Sunday 4th July, 2021. Shri Jagdishprasad Gupta was father of Shri Anand Gupta, Chairman, BAI's Housing and RERA Committee, Shri Mohan Katariya left for his heavenly abode in the early morning of Wednesday 14th July, 2021. Shri Mohan Katariya was Past Vice-President and Past Trustee of BAI, Smt S. Bala manemma, left for her heavenly abode on 6th August 2021. She was the mother of Shri S.K.Harish Babu, Past State Chairman, BAI Andhra Pradesh State, Shri G. Anjayya, left for his heavenly abode on 29th August, 2021. He was Patron member, Butibori (Nagpur) Centre, Shri V. R. Kaliappa Gounder left for his heavenly abode on 14th September 2021 Shri V. R. Kaliappa Gounder was the father of Shri K. Viswanathan, Past Vice President, BAI, Shri Amrut Bhiku Gadhi left for his heavenly abode on Monday, 20th September, 2021. He was the father of Shri Pradip Gandhi, Chairman, BAI Raigad District Centre, Maharashtra, Shri M. S. N. Murthy left for his heavenly abode on 22nd September, 2021. He was one of the founder members of BAI Mysore Centre, Shri. P. Dayakar Reddy left for his heavenly abode on 22nd September 2021. He was Executive Committee member of BAI Hyderabad Centre, Shri N. Krishnappa left for his heavenly abode on 22nd September, 2021. Shri N. Krishnappa was father of Shri K. Manjunath, General Council Member of BAI from Shimoga Centre, Smt. Madhavi Gurushanthappa wife of Mr. Gurushanthappa Imm. Past State Chairman BAI Karnataka & Past Chairman of BAI Mysore Centre left for her heavenly abode on 6<sup>th</sup> October, 2021. Smt. Madhavi Gurushanthappa was also Past President of "Spoorthi - The Ladies Wing of BAI Mysore Centre" and was editor of the monthly magazine of BAI Mysore Centre "Mysore Shilpi", Shri Natwarlal Patel left for his heavenly abode on 22nd October, 2021. Shri Natwarlal Patel was Director of M/s Maruti Infrastructure Ltd., Patron Members of BAI from BAI Gujarat (Ahmedabad) Centre and Paternal Uncle of Shri Nimesh Patel, Past Vice-President, BAI. Smt. Vidyavati Goyal left for her heavenly abode on 3rd December, 2021. Smt. Vidyavati Goyal was mother of Shri Ram Avtar, State Chairman, BAI Delhi, Shri N. M. Singh left for his heavenly abode on 5th December, 2022. Shri N. M. Singh was PastVice President, BAI Eastern region, Shri N. R.Parashar left for his heavenly abode on 11th December, 2022. Shri N. R. Parashar was Past State Chairman of BAI Chattisgarh, Dr. Kirty Dave left for his heavenly abode on 16th December, 2022. Dr. Kirty Dave was a very renowned Arbitrator and Patron Member of BAI Mumbai Centre, Shri Madanlal ji Sethi left for his heavenly abode on 19th January, 2022. He was elder brother of Shri Mahendra Sethi, Patron member of Rajasthan (Jaipur) Centre, Shri Walter N. A. Nazareth left for his heavenly abode on 19th January, 2022. Shri Walter N. A. Nazareth was Chairman Emeritus of M/s Monsher Group, Patron Member of BAI Mumbai Centre, Shri Ramram Ganpatrao Maknikar left for his heavenly abode on 28th January, 2022. Shri Ramram Ganpatrao Maknikar was Past Chairman of BAI Latur Centre, Shri Balasaheb Devram Wagh left for his heavenly abode on Sunday 6th February, 2022. Shri Balasaheb Devram Wagh was father-in-law of Shri Ranjeet More, Past Vice-President, BAI. Shri Balasaheb Devram Wagh was from the illustrious K. K. Wagh family of Nashik and a successful educationist, Smt. Pushpa Agrawal left for her heavenly abode on 12th February, 2022. Smt. Pushpa Agrawal was mother of Shri Naresh Agarwal, Past Chairman, BAI Ghaziabad Centre, Shri Ashok Chopda left for his heavenly abode on 16th February, 2022. Shri Ashok Chopda was Past Chairman of BAI Ahmednagar Centre, and Dr. Dushyant Tyagi ji left for his heavenly abode on 03rd March 2022. He was a senior member from Uttar Pradesh State.

Members observed two minutes silence to pay homage to the departed souls.

President wholeheartedly welcomed the members to the 81<sup>St</sup> Annual General Meeting of the Association. He stated that, it is his privilege to stand before such huge gathering of BAI members, with the galaxy of Past Presidents, who come from length and breadth of this country to attend this 81<sup>st</sup> Annual General Meeting. He also expressed gratitude to all BAI Centres in Kerala, especially to BAI Kollam Centre for hosting this AGM at Kovalam.

At the outset, he thanked the members for electing him as President of BAI for the year 2022-23. He stated that it is very humbling experience that he becomes President of BAI who has many doyens of construction industry as its president.

He also stated that his immediate predecessor Shri R. N. Gupta, as President of BAI, has taken the Association and its activities to greater heights. He has not only taken up the issues, but also relentlessly followed up the same ultimately bringing positive results to the Construction Industry. Though there was also pandemic situation in the country during the year 2021-22, with the support and co-operation of you all, we could achieve many relief measures for our contractors' fraternity.

He then appraised members about various issues taken by him during his tenure as President thus far.

He appraised members about his various meeting with the Shri C. R. Patil ji (MP & Gujarat State BJP President), Shri Bhupendra Yadav ji (Union Minister of Labour and Employment), Shri Kaushal Kishor (Union Minister of State for Housing & Urban Affairs), Smt. Bhartiben Shiyal (MP & National Vice President of BJP) & Shri Devusinh Chauhan ji (Union Minister of State for Communication), BJP National President Shri J P Naddaji, Members of Parliament and Shri Nitin Gadkarji ji, about the plight of contractors Vis-à-Vis Implementation of New Labour Code, Abnormal Cement and Steel price increase.

He appraised members of his visit to almost all Centres in the Southern Region, Western Region and other region Centres. He appreciated Centres for their very active role in taking up the issues of construction contractors to the Authorities. Many Centres have organised seminars, workshops, interactive meeting with Ministers, Department Heads, installation meetings, Builders Day etc. etc. and he appreciated them for the good work to make BAI a vibrant trade body.

Finally, he expressed gratitude towards the wholehearted support of his team of Office Bearers and BAI Head Quarter Staffs'.

On President's request, Hon. General Secretary, Shri Gyan Chand Madhani took up the agenda for the 81<sup>st</sup> Annual General Meeting of Builders' Association of India, as circulated to the members.

# 1. To confirm the Minutes of the 80th Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, 2nd December 2021, at 6.00 pm at Hotel Crowne Plaza, Jaipur Tonk Road, Rajasthan – 302022.

The Hon. Secretary informed members that, The Minutes of the Eighty Annual General Meeting of BAI held at Rajasthan on 2<sup>nd</sup> December 2021 has already been circulated to the members wide letter no.391/D/2021-22, dated 23<sup>rd</sup> December 2021 and were also hosted in our Website. He also informed that BAI also sought comments on AGM Minutes on or before 19<sup>th</sup> January 2022 and not received comments from anybody, as such the Minutes may be taken as confirmed. Members agreed and confirmed the Minutes as circulated.

**Proposed by:** Shri R.Radhakrishnan, Past President & Past Trustee and **Seconded by**: Shri Lal Chand Sharma, Past President & Chairman Board of Trustees

# 2. To take note of the result of BAI Organisational Election for the year 2022-23.

The Hon. Gen. Secretary informed members that, BAI Organisational Elections for 2022-23 were held on 30th March 2022. The election results were already been circulated to members.

He also stated that, Shri Raju John, Executive Secretary, was appointed as the Returning Officer and Shri Fazal Ali, Shri K. Subramani and Shri A.B. Chitle were the Board Scrutineers of BAI Organisational Elections for 2022-23. They have conducted the elections in the most meticulous way in presence of a large gathering and the election result was announced by Shri Pradeep Nagawekar, Hon. Gen. Secretary, as follows:-

Shri Niimesh Paatel	-	President
Shri Manikant	-	Vice President (East)
Shri Mahendra Kumar Sethi	-	Vice President (North)
Shri V. Srinivasa Murthy	-	Vice President (South-I)
Shri G. Ved Anand	-	Vice President (South-II)
Shri Rajendra S. Athawale	-	Vice President (West)
Shri Gyanchand Madhani	-	Hon. General Secretary
Shri Mihinder Rijhwani	-	Hon. Gen. Treasurer)

The New team of Office Bearers headed by President Shri Nimesh Patel took charge of Office from 1<sup>st</sup> April 2022 for term of one year.

Members noted the Election Result.

**Proposed by:** Shri N. Sachitanand Reddy, Past Vice President and **Seconded by:** Dr. D. C. Awasthi, Past Vice President.

### 3. To take note of the election result of Trustee, for the year 2022-25.

The Hon. Gen. Secretary informed members that, BAI Trustees Elections for the term 2022-25 were held on 30th March 2022. The election results were already been circulated to members. [Results printed on Page 10 of Annual Report].

He also stated that, Shri Raju John, Executive Secretary, was appointed as the Returning Officer and Shri Fazal Ali, Shri K. Subramani and Shri A.B. Chitle were the Board Scrutineers of BAI Organisational Elections for 2022-23. They have conducted the elections in the most meticulous way in presence of a large gathering and the election result was announced by Shri Pradeep Nagawekar, Hon. Gen. Secretary, as follows:-

Shri Rajendra Singh Kamboah (East) Shri Lal Chand Sharma (North) Shri N. Sachitanand Reddy (South-I) Shri Mu. Moahan (South-II) Shri M. Thirusangu (South-II) Shri Pradeep Nagawekar (West) Shri N. M. Patel (West)

The New team of Trustees have been took charge of Office from 1st April 2022 for term of 3 years.

Members noted the Election Result.

**Proposed by:** Shri K. Subramani, Past Vice President and **Seconded by:** Shri S.N. Reddy, Past Vice President.

# 4. To consider, and if thought fit, adopt the Annual Report of the Association for the year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022.

The Hon. Gen. Secretary informed members that, the Annual Report depicting the activities of BAI, i.e. Headquarters and Centres for the financial year 2021-2022 i.e. the year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022, have been circulated to the members.

The Hon. Gen. Secretary also stated that the full report have been hosted in BAI Website: www.baionline.in on 1<sup>st</sup> September 2022 and also circulated to all members seeking comments on the same to be received at BAI HQ on or before 7th September, 2022. He also informed members, as BAI HQ has not received any comments from members, we have circulated the Annual Report to all Managing Committee and General Council Members on 8th September 2022.

He also stated that , the draft Annual Report of the Association for the year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022, was circulated in the Managing Committee Meeting held at Kovalam on 24<sup>th</sup> September 2022, and the same was unanimously approved by the Managing Committee.

Members unanimously adopted the Annual Report of the Association for year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022, and passed the following resolution, which was **proposed by:** Shri S. K. Basu, Past President and **seconded by:** Shri Abhay Garde, Managing Committee Member.

It is RESOLVED that, the 81<sup>st</sup> Annual Report of Builders Association of India for the year 2021-22 be and is hereby approved.

# 5. To consider, and if thought fit, adopt the Audited Balance Sheet and Income & Expenditure Account of the Association for the year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022.

The Hon. Gen. Secretary informed members that, the audited Balance Sheet and Income & Expenditure Account of the Association for the year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022, was circulated to the members on 1st September, 2022. While sending the Agenda, members were requested to send queries or clarification on Accounts on or before20<sup>th</sup> September 2022.

In this regard, BAI Headquarter have received the following queries from Shri N. Raghunathan, Managing Committee Member, BAI Poonamallee Centre. :-

### Q1. There is over 150% increase in expenditure under the head 'Printing & Stationery'.

Answer: Yes, there is 150% increase in expenditure under the head 'Printing & Stationery' when compared to last year.

Sir, as you are aware in the F.Y.2020-21, due to Covid 19 situation, we have circulated the communication like Agenda of MCGC Meetings, Circulars etc. to members by 'Soft Copy' only (email, whatspp etc.)

Once, the Covid situation was under control in the FY 2021-22, we printed copies of Agenda, Annual report, Circulars, Election letters etc. were sent to members by 'hard Copy'.

Hence, the 'Printing & Stationery' expenses increased.

Q2. There is an expenditure of about Rs.8.70 lakhs towards office renovation expenses. I hope this amount would have been budgeted. If not, please let me know whether it has be ratified by MC/GC. Also please clarify why this could not be booked under 'Earmarked Fund'.

**Ans:** The above matter was discussed in the Managing Committee Meeting held on 20th February, 2021 at Coimbatore, under Agenda Item No. 07.To Apprise members on the Urgent need of Terrace Slab recasting of BAI HQ office and subsequent Interior Works. (We give below extract of the minutes).

The Hon. General Secretary brought to the attention of members on page No.73-80 of the agenda, circulated to them, which gives a complete picture of the matter mentioned in the agenda item.. He then informed members about the communication sent by Commerce Centre Society by stating that, the terrace portion above our office premise is totally in bad shape due to corrosion of the steel pipe which was laid around sixty years ago. The Society's communication also had an attachment of the opinion provided by a certified Structural Engineer explaining the serious damage it could create to the premises. Further, the Society advised about the urgent requirement of recasting the slab to avoid a possible collapse, which may cause loss to properties as well as human life. The Society requested BAI to vacate our office so that the terrace portion could be repaired with lying of new steel and RCC. The Society also insists BAI to indemnity the society for any future damages if BAI is not agreeing to repair the terrace area. BAI thereafter approached an independent Structural Engineer for his opinion and the same is also included in the agenda page No.81-82. It clearly mentions the corrosion and advised BAI to repair the same immediately to avoid losses both human and capital.

He then stated that, it is necessary to recast the slab and BAI have to redo the interior work, including the POP work and it may cost approximately around Rs.25.00 lakhs.

Members after discussion approved the cost of interior work of BAI HQ Premises and authorized to spent the amount.

The decision in this regard was proposed by Shri R. Radhakrishnan, Past President and Past Trustee and Seconded by Shri Vijaya Raghava Reddy, Past President.

As approved by the Managing Committee, a Committee is formed with Shri Pradeep Nagawekar, Hon. General Secretary, Shri Neerav Parmar, Vice President, Shri Mohinder Rijhwani, Chairman, Mumbai Centre, Shri Raju John, Executive Secretary to supervise the interior work of BAI. The Interior work is awarded to M/s. Faiz Décor.

The total Bill amount was Rs.23,52,986/- and we have paid an amount of Rs. 23,21,326/- including Rs.8,70 Lakh.

There is still a balance of Rs. 31,660/- is still payable to M/s. Faiz decor.

# Q3. There is a whopping sum of Rs.95.25 lakhs under TDS receivable. Please let me know whether this has been adjusted before paying income tax under protest. Also, please advise us on the status of our claim in this regard.

**Ans:** BAI's consolidated Income Tax Returns are under scrutiny and pending the same for the last eight years, therefore, our claim for refund have not been acceded by the department.

# Q4. Under schedule F you have provided Rs.605994/- towards interest payable to Centres on TDS Refund. Please let us know how you wish to dispose this of.

**Ans:** BAI's consolidated Income Tax Returns is under scrutiny and pending the same for the last eight years, therefore, our claim for refund have not been acceded by the department.

Once, the amount is refunded by the Income Tax department, the same will be allocated to the centre as per TDS certificate of the respective centre.

# Q5. Kindly advise me the present interest rate applied on Patron Members' money for the purpose of transferring centre's share.

Ans: BAI HQ is distributing the interest @6% (60% of 6%).

Q6. From what you have said I understand that Rs.95.25 lakhs of TDS receivable represents refund due from the income tax department i.e., nett of TDS less income tax levied. Am I right? Ans: Sir, As per Income Tax Return filed till now, no tax is payable. Hence it is a Gross TDS before deducting of Income Tax levied.

# Q7. Regarding renovation expenses, I had queried why it was not charged against Earmarked Fund. Please enlighten me on this.

**Ans:** There was a balance in 'Office Renovation Fund' carried out from earlier years, hence, our consultant has advised us to utilise this 'Office Renovation Fund' and excess amount to be transferred to 'Income and Expenditure' account.

Shri R. Radhakrishnan, Past President & Trustee appreciated the earlier team of BAI Headquarter Office-Bearers for the record surplus made during the year 2021-22. He also expressed his appreciation for the financial discipline implemented by Executive Secretary, Shri Raju John in the functioning of the association and also making BAI a surplus generating organisation.

Members unanimously adopted the Audited Balance Sheet and Income & Expenditure Accounts of the Association for the year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022, and also authorised the Headquarter to make adjustment necessary in the accounts, while filing the consolidated return incorporating the Centres' accounts with BAI Headquarter and also to sign the Annual Return as per the legal requirements.

The House passed the following resolution, which was **Proposed by :** Shri Mu. Moahn, Past President, and Seconded by : Shri Anand J. Gupta, Managing Committee Member.

"RESOLVED that, the audited Statement of Accounts and the Balance Sheet of Builders' Association of India for the year ending 31<sup>st</sup> March 2022 be and are hereby approved.

# 6. To appoint Auditors to audit the accounts of the Association for the year 2022-23 and fix their remuneration.

The Hon. Gen. Secretary informed members that the present fee of the Auditor is Rs. 25,000/- to audit the Accounts of BAI Headquarter. He also stated that, our Auditors are doing a good job particularly in the matter of filing combined return of Income and Expenditure Account with the Income Tax Department. He requested the House to re-appoint the Auditor with same remuneration. Members unanimously approved the decision and passed the following resolution:-

"RESOLVED that, M/s. K.V.S. & Company, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, be and are hereby appointed as Auditors of Builders' Association of India, on the remunerations of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand Only) to audit the accounts of the Association for the year 2022-23".

The Resolution was **proposed by**: Shri R.R. Shridhar, Chairman, BAI Southern (Chennai) Centre and **seconded by** Shri S. Ayyanathan, Managing Committee Member.

# 7. To consider, any other item, with the permission of the Chair.

# (i) Announcement of BAI Awards 2021-22.

The Hon. Gen. Secretary informed the members that, 32 entries for BAI Awards of fourteen different categories were received by the Headquarter, for the year 2021-22. He further informed the members that, the Award Committee have selected the following Centres / Members for BAI Award 2021-22:-

Sr. No.	Name of Award	:	Recommended for 2021-22
1.	Overall Best BAI Centre (Below 200 Members)		1. Thrissur Centre
2.	Overall Best BAI Centre (Above 200 Members)		<ol> <li>Southern (Chennai) Centre</li> <li>Cochin Centre</li> <li>Mumbai Centre</li> <li>Mysore Centre</li> </ol>
3.	Image Building Activities by a Centre		<ol> <li>Meerut Centre</li> <li>Tirunlveli Centre</li> <li>Mysore Centre</li> </ol>
4.	Organising Best Training Programme or Seminar		<ol> <li>Coimbatore Centre</li> <li>Mumbai Centre</li> <li>Pune Centre</li> </ol>
5.	Maximum Membership Growth		1. Kolkata Centre
6.	Best Efforts by any Centre for Quality Construction		1. Durgapur Centre
7.	Best Builders' Day Celebrations.		<ol> <li>Karnataka (Bangalore) Centre</li> <li>Kanyakumari Centre</li> <li>Thiruchirapally Centre</li> <li>Theni Centre</li> <li>Ahmedanagar Centre</li> </ol>
8.	Best publication by a BAI Centre		1. Southern (Chennai) Centre
9.	Maximum Membership Retention		1. Loni Centre
10.	Best performing Vice President		1. Shri S. Ayyanathan, Vice President, BAI, South-II
11.	Best performing State Chairman.		1. Shri R. Sivakumar, State Chairman,

		<ul> <li>Tamil Nadu, Puducherry and Andaman Nicobar.</li> <li>2. Shri Randhir Bhoite, State Chairman, Maharashtra</li> </ul>
12.	Best performing Chairmen of BAI's functional Committees	<ol> <li>Dr. Anand J. Gupta, Chairman, Housing / RERA Committee.</li> <li>Shri K. Subramani, Chairman, Green Building Committee.</li> <li>CA. M. Raveendaran, Chairman, Taxation Committee</li> <li>Shri D.V.N. Reddy, Chairman, Membership Development and New Centres Committee.</li> <li>Shri K. Viswanathan, Chairman, Private Contractors Redressal Committee.</li> <li>Shri R.Radhakrishnan, Chairman, XXX All India Builders Convention Committee.</li> <li>Shri Mu. Moahan, Chairman, Organising XXX All India Builders Convention Committee.</li> </ol>
13.	For holding the best MCGC meeting in an organised manner	1. Rajasthan (Jaipur) Centre
14.	For Hosting XXX All India Builders Convention in a grand manner	1. Southern(Chennai) Centre

The Hon. Gen. Secretary informed members that the trophy and Certificate will be presented to centre / members during the Managing Committee Meeting to be held at Bangalore on 28th November, 2022 at Clarks Exotica Resorts & Spa.

With a hearty vote of thanks to the Chair, the meeting concluded.

NIIMESH PAATEL PRESIDENT BUILDERS' ASSOCIATION OF INDIA

### GYANCHAND MADHANI HON. GEN. SECRETARY BUILDERS' ASSOCIATION OF INDIA

# Annexure - I

# **BUILDERS' ASSOCIATION OF INDIA**

# ATTENDANCE OF 81<sup>ST</sup> ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING MEETINGS FOR 2022 -23 ON 24.09.2022 AT UDAY SAMUDRA LEISURE BEACH HOTEL, KOVALAM (KERALA)

Shri Niimesh D. Paatel	:	President, BAI
Shri Manikant	:	Vice President, East
Shri Mahendra Kumar Sethi	:	Vice President, North
Shri V. Srinivasa Murthy	:	Vice President, South -I
Shri G. Ved Anand	:	Vice President, South - II
Shri Rajendra S. Athawale	:	Vice President, West
Shri Gyan Madhani	:	Hon. General Secretary
Shri Mohinder H. Rijhwani	:	Hon. General Treasures
Shri R. Radhakrishnan	:	Past President & Past Trustee, BAI
Shri Lal Chand Sharma	:	Past President & Trustee, BAI
Shri Mu. Moahan	:	Past President, & Trustee, BAI
Shri B. Seenaiah	:	Past President, BAI
Shri A. Puhazhendi	:	Past President, BAI
Shri H. N. Vijaya Raghava Reddy	:	Past President, BAI
Shri Avinash M. Patil	:	Past President, BAI
Shri Bhagwan J. Deokar	:	Past President, BAI
Shri Sushanta Kumar Basu	:	Past President, BAI
Shri Pradeep G. Nagawekar	:	Trustee, BAI
Shri N. Sachitanand Reddy	;	Trustee, BAI
Shri N.M. Patel	:	Trustee, BAI
Shri M. Thirusangu	:	Trustee, BAI
_		

# **STATE CHAIRMAN**

3. Raghava Rao : State Chai	irman, Andhra Pradesh
K. Chandrasekhar Rao : State Chai	irman, Chhattisgarh
/ed Khurana : State Chai	irman, Delhi
Rajiv Goel : State Chai	irman, Haryana
R.B. Dayanand : State Chai	irman, Karnataka
Vajeeb Mannel : State Chai	irman, Kerala
Dattatray Mule : State Chai	irman, Maharashtra
Ravi Kumar Kheria : State Chai	irman, Rajasthan
K. Jeganathan : State Chai	irman, Tamil Nadu
K. Devender Reddy : State Chai	irman Telangana
Bhavesh Kumar : State Co-c	ordinator, Bihar
Rajiv Goel:State ChaiR.B. Dayanand:State ChaiNajeeb Mannel:State ChaiDattatray Mule:State ChaiRavi Kumar Kheria:State ChaiK. Jeganathan:State ChaiK. Devender Reddy:State Chai	irman, Haryana irman, Karnataka irman, Kerala irman, Maharashtra irman, Rajasthan irman, Tamil Nadu irman Telangana

# **CENTRE CHAIRMAN**

Shri A. Karmegam	:	Chairman, BAI, Salem Centre
Shri Abhay Goel	:	Chairman, BAI, Delhi West Centre
Shri Anil C. Kothari	:	Chairman, BAI, Ahmednagar Centre
Shri Ashok Dayaramani	:	Chairman, BAI, Ulhasnagar Centre
Shri Aswin Ipe Philip	:	Chairman, BAI, Ettumanoor Centre
Shri Attaluri Nagamalleswara Rao	:	Chairman, BAI, Amaravati Centre
Shri B.M. Nataraju	:	Chairman, BAI, Karnataka (Bangalore)
Shri Bijoys K. Abraham	:	Chairman, BAI, Alleppey Centre
Shri C. Satish Kumar	:	Chairman, BAI, Poonamallee Centre
Shri C.M. Roy	:	Chairman, BAI, Andaman & Nicobar Centre
Shri Devendra K. Sharma	:	Chairman, BAI, Meerut Centre
Shri Digvijay Singh	:	Chairman, BAI Kerala (Trivandrum) Centre
Shri G. Udaya Kumar	:	Chairman, BAI, Dindigul Centre
Shri Hariom Sharma	:	Chairman, BAI, Hapur Centre
Shri I.V. Ravi Anand	:	Chairman, BAI, Udumalpet Centre
Shri J. Janarthanan	:	Chairman, BAI, Kanchipuram Centre
Shri Joshy Chandy	:	Chairman, BAI, Kottayam Centre
Shri K. Chandra Sheker Reddy	:	Chairman, BAI, Hyderabad Centre
Shri K. Gandhi	:	Chairman, BAI, Kumbakonam Centre
Shri K. Ramesh Babu	:	Chairman, BAI Kalpakkam centre
Shri K. Venkata Nage Reddy	:	Chairman, BAI, Anantapur Centre
Shri K. Venkatesan	:	Chairman, BAI, Tirunelveli Centre
Shri K.V. Padmanabam	:	Chairman, BAI, Tanuku Cente
Shri K.V. Soman	:	Chairman, BAI Idukki Centre
Shri Kandula Prabhakar Reddy	:	Chairman, BAI, Warangal Centre
Shri Kapil Jain	:	Chairman, BAI, Delhi South Centre
Shri Khalid	:	Chairman, BAI, Calicut Centre
Shri Krishan Singh Rathor	:	Chairman, BAI, Rajasthan (Jaipur) Centre
Shri M. Albert Nelson	:	Chairman, BAI, Kanyakumari Centre
Shri M. Aravinth	:	Chairman, BAI, Pudukkottai Centre
Shri M. Rengappa	:	Chairman, BAI, Thanjavur Centre
Shri M. Saravanan	:	Chairman, BAI, Coimbatore Centre
Shri Manish Kumar		Chairman, BAI, Patna Centre
Shri Manvir Singh Tyagi		Chairman, BAI, Ghaziabad Centre
Shri Mathew Johnson	•	Chairman, BAI, Changanacherry Centre
Shri N. Sundarraj		Chairman, BAI, Tirupur Centre
Shri Naveen Mehta	•	Chairman, BAI, Mohali Centre
Shri P. Seshagiri Rao	•	Chairman, BAI, Vizag Steel City Centre
Shri Pelexy K. Varghese	•	Chairman, BAI, Muvattupuzha Centre
Shri R. Karuppiah	•	Chairman, BAI, Chettinadu Centre
Shri R. Prathap Reddy	•	Chairman, BAI, Vijayawada Centre
Shri R.R. Shridhar	•	Chairman, BAI Southern (Chennai) Centre
Shri Rajesh G. Nathan	•	Chairman, BAI, Thiruvalla Centre
Shri Rajesh Kumar Madathil	•	Chairman, BAI, Thrissur Centre
Shri Ram Avtar	•	Chairman, BAI Delhi Centre
Shri S. Sridharan	•	
Shiri S. Shuharah	•	Chairman, BAI, Dharapuram Centre

Shri S. Wilson Raj	:	Chairman, BAI, Tambaram Centre
Shri S.P. Ravishankar	:	Chairman, BAI, Erode Centre
Shri Sajil Satheek	:	Chairman, BAI, Kollam Centre
Shri Sanjay Dasgupta	:	Chairman, BAI, Eastern (Kolkata) Centre
Shri Sanjay Kumar Shukla	:	Chairman, BAI, Sitapur Centre
Shri Sanjeev Kumar Bansal	:	Chairman, BAI, Delhi North Centre
Shri Sanjiv Dixit	:	Chairman, BAI, Lucknow Centre
Shri Satish Kasana	:	Chairman, BAI, Sahibabad Centre
Shri Siju Jose	:	Chairman, BAI, Angamaly Centre
Shri Sola Ramasubramania Raja Karthik	:	Chairman, BAI, Madurai Centre
Shri Sudhir Tyagi	:	Chairman, BAI, Allahabad Centre
Shri Sunil Garg	:	Chairman, BAI, Aligarh Centre
Shri Sunil Kumar S.	:	Chairman, BAI, Kochi (Cochin) Centre
Shri T. Bhaskara Rao	:	Chairman, BAI, Guntur Centre
Shri V.G. Ramakrishnan	:	Chairman, BAI, Karaikal Centre
Shri V.M. Muhammed Fawaz	:	Chairman, BAI, Aluva Centre
Shri Vinitkumar M. Patel	:	Chairman, BAI, Karnavati Centre
Shri Yoginder Singh	:	Chairman, BAI, Loni Centre
Shri Youvraj Chumbalkar	:	Chairman, BAI, Solapur Centre

### MANAGING COMMITTEE MEMBERS, REPRESENTING CENTRES

Dr. Dharmesh C. Awasthi (Kanpur – South) Dr. Tarro T. Manghnani (Mumbai) Shri A.N. Balaji (Southern - Chennai) Shri D.R. Sekar (Coimbatore) Shri G.M. Ravindra (Karnataka-Bangalore) Shri K. Muruganandam (Salem) Shri N. Mohamed Abdul Khader (Dindigul) Shri N. Ramalingam (Erode) Shri N.G. Lokanathan (Southern - Chennai) Shri O.K. Selvaraj (Southern - Chennai) Shri P. Parameswaran (Udumalpet) Shri P.N. Suresh (Thrissur) Shri R. Prakash (Kanchipuram - Chengalpattu) Shri Ravindra Pradhan (Jharkhand -Ranchi) Shri S. Ramaprabhu (Southern - Chennai) Shri T.V. Chandrasekaran (Southern - Chennai) Shri V. Rajagopal (Thanjavur) Shri V.S. Jayachandran (Kerala – Trivandrum)

#### MEMBERS OF THE MANAGING COMMITTEE - REPRESENTING PATRON MEMBERS

Dr. Anand J. Gupta Shri Ashok Agarwal Shri Ashok Shankar Gandhi Shri Basavaraj S. Totad Shri Bhoopinder Singh Shri D.V.N. Reddy Shri Dinesh Nanji Patel Shri G. Santosh Reddy Shri K. Chinnaswamy Shri K. John Paul Shri K. Venkatesan Shri L. Shantha Kumar Shri L. Venkatesan Shri M. Purnachandra Rao Shri Narendra Kumar

### **GENERAL COUNCIL MEMBERS**

Dr. Anil Joseph Dr. S. Subbiah Ilamvazhuthi Er. ST. A. Selvam Shri A. Kalaiarasan Shri A. Kasivisweswara Rao Shri Abhay Garde Shri Agi Abraham Shri Alex Perumalil Cyriac Shri Anil Kumar K.V. Shri Ashwin Kumar Tyagi Shri B. Chandra Mohanan Shri B. Dhanasekaran Shri C. Periasamy Shri C.M. Mathew Shri CH. Ramakotaiah Shri CT.Annamalai Shri D. Pankaj Reddy Shri D. Ramachandra Prasad Shri D. Shanmugavel Shri Dinkar Singh Shri G. Diwakar Shri G. Thilagar Shri G. Venkateshwar Rao Shri Jai Kumar Tharamel Shri K. Annamalai Shri K. Kesavan Shri K. Manjunath Shri K. Panneer Selvam Shri K. Sriram Shri K. Subramani Shri Kalpesh Arunkumar Joshi Shri Kirti M. Thacker Shri M. Ayyappan Shri M. Babu Shri M. Bojarajan

Shri Prakash H. Menda Shri R. Sivakumar Shri Ram Bhatia Shri S. Ayyanathan Shri S. Ramaprabhu Shri Sanjiv B. Shah Shri T. Kannappan Shri V. Venkateswara Rao

Shri M. Jimmi Carten Shri M. Murugesan Shri M. Olaganatha Sankar Shri M. Rajendran Shri M. Rajendran Shri M. Ramesh Shri M. Ranganathan Shri M. Raveendaran Shri M. Sitharthan Shri M.N. Balasundaram Shri Manoj Kumar Singla Shri Mathew Philip Shri N. Nageswara Rao Shri N.S. Muralidhara Shri N.S. Muralidhara Shri Nirmal Chand Challani J. Shri P. Palani Shri P. Ramkumar Shri P. Selvasundaram Shri P. Venkateswhar Reddy Shri P.K. Jayakanthan Shri Prabir Kumar Mukherjee Shri R. Ambika Pathy Shri R. Kalyana Venkatesan Shri R. Karana Boopathy Shri R. Muthukumar Shri R. Nimrode Shri R. Ramesh Shri R. Ramesh Kumar Shri R. Suresh Shri Ranjeet R. More Shri S. Balan Shri S. Cyril Christ Raj Shri S. Ganapathi

Shri S. Jayabalan Shri S. Mohan Shri S. Narasimha Reddy Shri S. Shiva Prakash Shri S.D. Kannan Shri S.K. Chandrasekar Shri S.S. Natarajan Shri Sabu Thomas Shri Soma Srinivas Reddy Shri Srinivasa Reddy Shri Sudip Kumar Dutta Shri T.M.S. Sivakumar Shri U. Meenakshi Sunderam Shri V. Jayaram Shri V. Phiragathiswaran Shri V. Santhosh Babu Shri V. Satish Chowdary Shri V. Sudarsan Shri V.S. Ramakrishnan Shri V.S.K. Moorthy Shri Vijay Kumar Garg, Shri Vijaykumar R. Patel

# GENERAL COUNCIL MEMBERS FROM AFFILIATED ASSOCIATIONS

Shri B. Ramesh

Shri M. Jaishankar

### LIST OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS ON THE MANAGING COMMITTEE FOR 2022-23

Shri V. M. Fazal Ali

Shri Jagdish M. Parikh

#### **COMMITTEE MEMBERS**

Shri K.A. Johnson	:	Co-Chairman, Environment & ISO Committee
Shri M.V. Antony	:	Chairman, MSME Committee
Shri N. Manivannan	:	Co-Chairman, Private Contractors Redressal Committee
Shri R. Murugan	:	Chairman, Image Building Committee
Shri R. Raghu	:	Co-Chairman, NHAI Committee
Shri T.I. George	:	Co-Chairman, CPWD Committee

## SPECIAL INVITEES

Dr. Lamanto T. Somervell Shri A.R. Ravindra Bhat Shri C.K.S. Panicker Shri D. Rangaswamy Shri D.P Singh Shri H. Saravana Subbiah Shri H.V. Nagesh Shri Hanamant Gangadhar Kulkarni Shri J. Thomas Prem Kumar Shri K. Jyothikumar Shri K. Rajavel Shri K.K. Joy Shri M. Baaldwin Bruce Shri M. Ravi Shri N. Ramadoss Shri Nalla Raja Reddy Shri Narayana Murthy P.K.P Shri Paresh Vachhani Shri Paul T. Mathew Shri Prakash Nathuji Dewalkar Shri R. Nandha Kumar Shri R. Rajasekar Shri Rajeev Warrior Shri Rameshwar D. Khandelwal Shri Saju Mathew Shri Senthil Rajarajan M. Shri Sunil Wamanrao Ulhe

#### **OBSERVERS**

Adv S. Pradeep Capt.George Thomas Er. Kalyan Soman K S Boopathy Mrs Reena Jyothi Kumar Mrs. Roshina Shir Syam M C Shir Vinod James Shri A A Joseph Shri A. Balamurugan Shri A.Devender Reddy Shri Abhin J Panicker Shri Achin Bijoy Shri Advaith R.S. Shri Akhil Krishnan Shri Akhil Raj V Shri Akhil Vinayak Shri Alan Babu Shri Ali Abrer Shri Ali Mannel Shri Aliyarukutty M Shri Amal G Nath Shri Amlan Kumar Biswas Shri Anand Vinayak Shri Anandakrishnan Shri Aneesh Babu Shri Aneesh Nair Shri Anoop.S. Nair Shri Antony C J Shri Ar. Aashik Ganesh Ram Shri Arun Kumar R. Shri Arun Unnithan Shri Arun V.S Shri Ashish Kumar Singhal Shri Ashok Kumar Gautam Shri B.N Ramesh Shri B.R Sreekumar Shri B.R. Ravichandern Shri Baby John

Shri U.M. Gurushanthappa Shri V L Muniraja Shri V. Ramakrishnappa Shri V. Satya Murthy Shri Y. Srinivasan

Shri Balachandran Shri Balaji Padmaraj Shri Biju Sadasivan Shri Boobeshguru Shri D Gomathi Sankar Shri D. Subba Rao Shri Daniel Thomaa Shri Deepak Dare Shri Deepak Dhananjayan Shri Dharmalingam Shri Dheeraj Sahni Shri Dineshkumar Kanjibhai Patel Shri Dipu Sivdas Shri E Devender Reddy Shri E. Keerthinathan Shri Elango Shri Er Sthyamoorthi Shri Firoz Khan Shri G Arulalan Shri G. Padma Kumar Shri G. Ramakrishnan Shri Gattu Jeevan Kumar Shri George Mathew Shri Gibu P Mathew Shri Harish A. Kumar Shri Harish A.S Shri J Prabhakar Reddy Shri J Sathvik Reddy Shri Jack Ben Vincent Shri Janagar Shri Jeevath K Antony Shri Jikku Hassan Shri Jinu Jose Shri Jithin Mathew Panicker Shri Joby Joseph Shri John. P. George Shri Jose Thomas M Shri Joseph George Shri K A Cherian

Shri K Ajay Kumar Ghosh Shri K Indrasena Reddy Shri K Kiran Kumar Shri K Mathiyalagan Shri K Naveen Reddy Shri K Raghu Shri K Ravinder Reddy Shri K. Naveenkumar Shri K. Satheesh Kumar Shri K. Tirupathi Reddy Shri K.K.Antony Shri K.P Duraisamy Shri K.P.Sanil Kumar Shri K.V. Jeevanandam Shri Kalpesh Patel Shri Karthikselvam Shri Keshav Chandani Shri Kilaru Rama Krishna Shri Kishor Patel Shri Krishnakumar M R Shri Kumaran Shri Kurien Philip Shri M Pandiaraj Shri M Veera Reddy Shri M.Veeramarban Shri Machindr Pagire Shri Madan Murthy Shri Mijoy Mamu Shri Mllikarjum Kawale Shri Mohan Shri Mohan Mathew Shri Mukesh Shri Murugesan Shri N Raja Reddy Shri N. Karthikeyan Shri Nagarajan Shri Nikhil Suresh Shri P Rajeshwar Reddy Shri P Srinivasa Reddy Shri P Venkateshwar Reddy Shri P. Harikumar Shri P. Sridhar Shri Paul T Mathew Shri Paulraj Shri Pawan Garg Shri PK Ramesh Kumar Shri Prasad Shri Praveen Kumar R

Shri Prem Khamesra Shri Premkumar Shri Prince Joseph Shri R Kandasamy Shri R Saravanan Shri R. Murukan Shri Radhakrishnan M P Shri Ragesh Chakrapani Shri Rajeevan M Shri Rajesh B Deshmukh Shri Rajesh Kumar Singhal Shri Rajesh Mathew Shri Rajesh R Shri Ramesh Shri Ravishankar Shri Renju Raju Shri Renoy Varghese Shri Revansidha Bijjaragi Shri Rupesh Kumar Singhal Shri S Ayyanar Shri S Pradeep Kumar Shri S S Kulotungan Shri S. Ganesan Shri S. Selvaraj Shri S. Srinivas Rao Shri Sabari Rathen M. Shri Sabu Cherian Shri Saju N S Shri Sanjay Gundecha Shri Saniu S. Shri Santhosh Kumar V Shri Santy V Mathew Shri Saravanakumar Shri Saravanan Shri Sasi T B Shri Sasikumar. S Shri Satheesh S Shri Shahi Hussian Shri Sharath Mathew Varghese Shri Shashikant Bedarkar Shri Shaukes Suelani Shri Shiji Haridas Shri Shine Joseph Shri Shiva J P Shri Sita Rama Raju Shri Sreejith Shri Sreejith P M Shri Subramani N

Shri Sumesh Chandradas Shri Sunil Bhamare Shri Sunil Raghavan Shri Suresh Kumar Shri Suresh Kumar Vasavan Shri Syed Jaffar Sadiq N Shri T Selvaganesan Shri T. P. Madhusudanan Shri T.A. Abdul Shri T.R. Rajesh Shri Terance Alex Shri Uday Mundhe Shri Umesh Gaikwad Shri V Thangaraj

# Shri Varghese Mathew Shri Vellaichamy Shri Vembu Shri Verdani Vinod Shri Vijaykumar Bendre Shri Vikas Jain Tijaria Shri Vinod D. Patel Shri Vinod Harjani Shri Vinod Harjani Shri Vinoth Shri Vinoth Shri Vipinrajv Shri Wilson George Shri Y. Periya Durai

# **BAI, HQ OFFICIAL**

Shri Raju John, Executive Secretary Shri S. Madhusudan, Head Communications